
Town of Hingham

Historic Districts Commission

210 Central Street ~ Hingham, Massachusetts

Historic Districts Commission
Minutes of Meeting
Thursday June 11, 2020
6:30 PM

Remote meeting via Zoom:
Time: Jun 11, 2020 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) Meeting ID: 829 4796 3747

Commission Members Present Remotely: Michael Collard, Hans von der Luft, Catherine Daley, 
Carol Pyles (joined at 6:45PM), and Alternate Members Ben Burnham, Tomas Kindler, Justin 
Aborn, Tracy Shriver, and Robert Edson. Also present remotely, Historical Administrator 
Andrea Young and Administrative Assistant Sherry Robertson.

6:30 P.M. Call to order

7:15 P.M. Jeffrey Long and Pamela Findlay, 115 Leavitt Street, located in the Hingham
Centre Local Historic District; to replace 10 windows on the Main house.

7:40 P.M. Patrick Brady, 67-71 North Street, located in the Lincoln Local Historic 
District, for modifications to existing building.

8:10 P.M. John and Erin Spranger, 100 Main Street, located in the Pear Tree Hill Local
Historic District, to install fencing around pool.

This meeting is being held remotely as an alternate means of public access pursuant to an
Order issued by the Governor of Massachusetts dated March 12, 2020 Suspending Certain
Provisions of the Open Meeting Law.  You are hereby advised that this meeting and all
communications during this meeting may be recorded by the Town of Hingham in
accordance with the Open Meeting Law.

The meeting was called to order at 6:33 PM. Chairman Michael Collard read the above statement
regarding the open meeting law during the current State of Emergency, and designated alternate
member Ben Burnham to be a voting member for the first application.



15-17 Lincoln Street, located in the Lincoln Local Historic District
The proposal consists of relocating the existing shed and the construction of a new two-level
barn with lower level parking for two cars and upper level studio. Architect Vcevy Strekalovsky
was present on behalf of the applicant, Darrin Fitzgerald who was also present remotely.
Commissioner Collard thanked the applicant for having the site visit. Commissioner Burnham
discussed the condition of the existing shed, and stated that in his assessment, it is likely from the
mid-1800s. Commissioner Aborn asked for clarification of the plans for the shed, and Mr.
Strekalovsky explained that the plan is to relocate the shed forward and to repair and restore it.
The proposed garage will be where the shed is now. Commissioner Shriver stated that given
Commissioner Burnham’s assessment of the age of the shed, he leans toward being in favor of
maintaining and relocating it, but voiced concern of giving the shed prominence by placing it
closer to the street.  Vcevy Strekalovsky stated that the shed will be 25 feet from the street and
they will not be changing the grading. Commissioner Daley stated that the shed is small and the
new garage will help bring balance to the site, noting that the property across the street also has a
small shed. Commissioner Pyles agreed that the shed fits in with the neighborhood, and asked
about options for the garage doors.  Commissioners Daley and Edson also asked about the design
of the barn doors. Commissioner von der Luft stated that the site visit was helpful, and he feels
that the property will have a nice complementary feel with these structures and the Lincoln
property across the street. Commissioner Kindler agreed that it balances well, and suggested the
applicant consider stone for the foundation.
Motion: Commissioner Burnham made a motion to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness to 15-
17 Lincoln Street to move the existing shed as indicated on the plan submitted; shed stairs to be
wood, foundation facing to be at the applicant’s discretion (to replace in kind, or use stone face);
windows of the shed to be all wood; garage /barn doors as drawn on plans dated April 8, 2020;
additional study of overhead garage door to be submitted; colors to be all natural finish; exterior
trim color to be submitted; riprap to remain and repair as needed; roof of shed to be cedar
shingles; barn roof to be asphalt to match the house; barn windows to be all wood, simulated
divided light.
Second: Commissioner Aborn
In Favor: Commissioners Daley, von der Luft, Aborn, Burnham, and Collard
Opposed: none

650 Main Street, located in the Glad Tidings Plain Local Historic District:
The applicant, Kristen Dziergowski was present remotely and explained the proposal to install a
6 foot high cedar fence that will taper to 4 feet. The fence will run adjacent to 648 Main Street.
She stated that there are no plans to touch the stone wall, as this is where the fence will stop, and
she submitted photos to show the location.  She also stated that the fence will remain natural and
left to weather. The Commission asked questions to clarify the location and style of the fence,
noting that the tapering from 6 feet to four feet is going toward Main Street. Commissioner
Daley stated that she has noticed similar fencing in the neighborhood and that the proposed fence
is nicely set back from the street. 
Motion: Commissioner Kindler made a motion to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness for 650
Main Street for the installation of a fence to be located between 650 Main Street and 648 Main
Street; the fence will taper in height from six feet at the rear to four feet toward the street; the
length of the fence is to be approximately 100 feet; fence to be solid cedar left natural to weather;



Second: Commissioner Pyles
In Favor: Commissioners Pyles, Kindler, Daley, Collard, and von der Luft
Opposed: none

115 Leavitt Street, located in the Hingham Centre Local Historic District
Present remotely to explain the proposal were the applicant Jeff Long and builder Tom Turner.
They explained that they are looking to replace 10 windows on the main house. Commissioner
Collard noted that the windows had been replaced previously and were not historically
significant. Commissioner Burnham stated that the existing windows are in disrepair.
Commissioner Shriver stated that the dormer windows can be seen and that the part of the house
where they are located is not original, and can show progression. Commissioner Pyles
questioned the appropriateness of the six over one windows, and Commissioner Shriver stated
that he would think the six over one windows would be okay, if they stuck to the six over six
windows on the front. Commissioner Collard noted that he conducted a site visit along with
Commissioners Burnham and Shriver, and agreed that keeping the six over six windows on the
front would be appropriate. 
Motion: Commissioner von der Luft made a motion to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness to
115 Leavitt Street to replace existing windows based on photos 1-10 submitted showing
windows labeled 1-10; based on cut sheets provided; windows to be Marvin simulated divided
light, all wood; trim and sash to match existing windows on front façade (#5).  Front windows to
remain six over six (the small window noted can remain six over six as no work is being done),
all other windows to be six over one.
Second: Commissioner Burnham
In Favor: Commissioners Collard, Burnham, Daley, and von der Luft
Opposed: Commissioner Pyles

67-71 North Street, located in the Lincoln Local Historic District
Present remotely were the applicant Patrick Brady and builder Gabe Lortie. They explained that
in 2017 the right side of the property was changed and now they want to renovate the left side to
improve the interior. They discussed submitted plans, particularly page A-2 showing the
proposed right elevation and proposed back elevation explaining that they are trying to make it
symmetrical. They described that the plan creates covered storage in between the two sides to
connect them for a more finished appearance.  They also stated that they want to expand the
living space on the second floor and are sticking to the original foundation plan. The applicants
also stated that they have brought the plans to the Building Department and the Zoning Board of
Appeals and are able to get permits if this Commission approves the plans. Patrick Brady shared
his screen to show the three dimensional view of the roof line.  The Commission asked questions
about the roof line, agreed it was somewhat awkward, and made suggestions for modifications.
Commissioner von der Luft stated that it would be helpful to see more vantage points on the
plans, to get a clearer picture of the roofline. Commissioner Daley agreed that more vantage
points would be helpful. Commissioner Collard stated that since the Commission agrees that
seeing more roofline options would be helpful, it seems best to continue the discussion until the
next meeting.  The applicants agreed to return at the next remote meeting to be held on July 16,
2020.



100 Main Street, located in the Pear Tree Hill Local Historic District
The applicant, John Spranger was present remotely.  He explained that they are proposing to
install fencing around a pool area.  Mr. Spranger reviewed the submitted materials and photos,
noting that the fence is to have wooden posts and black wire that will blend in with the
surroundings.  Commissioner Pyles suggested staining the posts to be a darker wood.
Commissioner Shriver asked if the cemetery located behind the house is considered a public
way. Administrator Andrea Young stated that the cemetery is considered a public way, and so
the view from there is part of the Commission’s purview. The Commission asked questions to
clarify existing conditions and what will be visible. Commissioner Aborn suggested that the
north fence, far from Main Street be left natural to weather. Commissioner von der Luft thanked
the applicant for their thorough application and stated that the new fence will tie in well, also
suggesting leaving it natural to weather.  
Motion: Commissioner von der Luft made a motion to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness for
100 Main Street for the installation of fencing around a pool; the fence on the west side to be
black, six feet in height, iron with a gate; the fence on the north side is to have natural color
wood posts with black mesh fencing to tie in with existing post on east side of the property;
based on submission, pages 1-7, all diagrams, plot plans, and measurements included with
photos.
Second: Tomas Kindler
In Favor: Commissioners von der Luft, Collard, Kindler, Pyles, and Daley
Opposed: none

Adoption of Minutes from Previous Hearings
The Commission reviewed the minutes from April 16, and April 23, 2020. Commissioner
Burnham suggested some minor edits and the Commission voted to adopt the minutes, with the
corrections discussed.

The Commission discussed the upcoming meeting schedule and when to hold site visits.

Other Business
Commissioner Shriver discussed suggestions related to application submissions, noting it would
be helpful when possible to have more of a three dimensional view of some proposals. He noted
that Google Street View is a helpful tool to get a sense of the streetscape, and to look at the
properties from the other vantage points. Commissioner Collard noted that some projects need to
submit more materials than others, but if it is relevant, it is fair to request more from an
applicant. The Commission agreed that it would be helpful for Commissioner Shriver to come up
with a list of suggestions to be discussed at a later date.

As there was no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:34 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sherry Robertson,
Administrative Assistant




